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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Zero Milepost is a stone marker measuring 42" in height, 12" on two sides
and 11" on two sides. The crown is pyramidal. The inscription "W & A RR 138"
is roughly carved into one side and "W & A RR 00" on anothgr. The lower 12"
of the marker are now enclosed by a large, square concrete "base and iron posts
with railings, which were added for protective purposes.

A Georgia Historical Commission marker providing a brief history of the
Railroad stands just outside the railing.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE
Zero Milepeost is significant in two areas of history: transportation and
local history. This stone milepost marks the southeastern terminus of the state-
owned Western and Atlantic Railroad. It was this railroad that provided the
impetus for the beginning and subsequent growth of the city of Atlanta. More
specifically, this milepost marks the center of the city from which the city
limits were measured.

Legislation creating the Western and Atlantic Railroad was enacted in 1836

although the idea of a state-owned railroad in Georgia had been mentioned as early
# as 1826, Then, in 1835-36, word came that a new rail line would be constructed

from Charleston to Cincinnati that could pass through north Georgia. However,

by the time a convention was held to discuss this possibility, it was too late.

The proposed Georgia route had been discarded in favor of a route through Tennessee.

Another convention was then held in Georgia and it was decided that the State of

Georgla would build its own railroad through the center & the state and allow

private, branch lines to join with it. Had Georgia participated in the Charleston

and Cincinnati project, the Western and Atlantic and the city of Atlanta itself

- may never have existed.

Governor Wilson Lumpkin initiated the idea for the W and A but, as his term
ended in 1835, his plans had to be enacted by the new governor, William Schley,
who appointed Colonel Abbott Hall Brisbane to survey north Georgia. When the
Legislature met in November of 1836, a bill to construct a railroad at state
expense was introduced and passed, 76-65. A major spokesman in the Legislature
on this bill was Alexander H. Stephens, a freshman legislator who made his maiden
speech for this bill and went on to become Congressman, Vice-President of the
Confederacy and Governor.

No specific locations of terminal points were named but generally they were
to be on the Tennessee line near the Tennessee River at or near Rossville and then
in a direct route to the southeastern bank of the Chattahoochee River. The 1836
Act stated further that the "said railroad shall be known and distinguished as the
Western and Atlantic Railroad of the State of Georgia." The annual appropriation
was set at $360,000, $60,000 of which was for surveying and locating the road.
Colonel Stephen Harriman Long was hired to survey and build the road on May 12, 1837.
He had previously taught mathematics, surveyed the Baltimore and Ohio Railroad and
written Railrodd Manual.
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The southeastern terminus was originally located at Pittman's Ferry in
Gwinnett County but it was soon found to be unfeasible and the point was relocated
at Montgomery's Ferry at Old Fort Gilmer and the Standing Peachtree. It was then
decided that the line should extend south of the river in order to provide a better
location for lines to Athens, Madison, Milledgeville and Forsyth to connect with
the Western and Atlantic., This provision was in an amendment to the 1836 Act and
was passed in December of 1837. It stated that the line would continue "to some
point not exceeding eight miles, as shall be most eligible for rumnning branch
roads..." The southeastern terminus was then moved to Land Lot 78, District 14,
DeKalb County. [This area became Fulton County on December 17, 1853.] This point
would be between the present Forsyth and Magnolia Streets. After comstruction
began in 1838, discussion continued on the location of the southeastern terminus.
Then, in 1842, a new and final point was established, only 1200 feet from the
previous point, in the northeast corner of Land Lot 77, 1l4th District, DeKalb,
later Fulton, County. This point was located at Loyd Street, now Central Avenue,
between Alabama and Decatur Streets by surveys by C.F.M. Garnett and F.C. Arms.

In 1850 the zero milepost was implanted at this location. Today it stands on
this same point but is under the Central Avenue viaduct between Wall Street

and Railroad Avenue. (See Vincent's Map of Atlanta, 1853, Attached) The mile-
posts were placed in 1850 by Bodwell E. Wells, Civil Engineer for the railroad,
who later testified that he "...began locating mile posts sometime in the fall

of 1850. I ascertained the initial point by measuring and obtaining the center
of the south line of the State Square, which was the north line of Loyd Street,
and using a map furnished me by the Chief Engineer that was made by F.C. Armes..."

A five acre tract including the point was donated to the state by Samuel
Mitchell in 1842 which allowed for the erection of the depot buildings. A small
settlement had already appeared as early as 1836 and was known as Terminus. When
the final point was located, a town was laid out and named Marthasville in honor
of Governor Lumpkin's youngest daughter. The five acre tract was called State
Square. The first train ran from Marthsaville to Marietta on December 24, 1842
but regular service did not begin until 1845. By 1845, Marthasville had grown
significantly. The railroad officials thought the name unfitting and began calling
their depot Atlanta. In December of 1845, the name was officially changed to
Atlanta and the city limits defined as one mile in every direction from the state
depot.

From this small, straggling railroad town of 1845 has grown one of the largest
metropolitan cities in the country. Zero Milepost stands as a reminder of these
early railroad days and the birth of a city.
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. (Collection of Franklin M. Garrett)

Vincent’s old (1853) map of Atlanta as reprinted in Hopkins’ Atlas of Atlanta, 1878. This
is the earliest extant complete map of the city. The “Note” and “*N.B.” were added upon
republication in the 1878 Atlas. Explanation at top added by the writer of this history
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